
Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel to 
be held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
Tom Stannard 

Chief Executive  

 
DATE: Wednesday, 2 March 2022 

 
TIME:  10.00 am 

 
VENUE: 100 Embankment - Cathedral Approach, Salford, M3 7NJ 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 

this meeting.  
 

AGENDA 

 
 GUIDANCE ON THE RETURN TO FACE COUNCIL MEETINGS  

 

(Pages 1 - 2) 

1   Welcome and Introductions.  

 

 

2   Apologies for absence.  

 

 

3   Declarations of Interest.  

 

 

4   To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held 

on 2 February 2022. (to follow)  

 

 

5   Matters arising.  

 

 

 10.05AM  

 

 

6   Covid-19 Update (Muna Abdel Aziz / Gillian Mclauchlan)  

 

 

 10.30AM  

 

 

7   Deep Dive Health Needs Black and Minority Ethnic (BAME) 
Groups including Refugees and People Seeking Asylum 

(Councillor Syed)  
 

Background Documents - 

 
1. Black and Minority Ethnic Groups Health Needs Assessment 2016 

 
2. Promoting diversity and inclusiveness in dementia services in 
Salford 

(Pages 3 - 26) 

Public Document Pack

https://www.salfordcvs.co.uk/sites/salfordcvs.co.uk/files/Salford%20BME%20Health%20Needs%20Assessment%202016.pdf
http://usir.salford.ac.uk/id/eprint/42318/1/C__Salford%20BME_Salford%20BME%20Dementia%20ReportFINAL23032017.pdf
http://usir.salford.ac.uk/id/eprint/42318/1/C__Salford%20BME_Salford%20BME%20Dementia%20ReportFINAL23032017.pdf


 

 
3. Beyond the data: Understanding the impact of COVID-19 on BAME 

groups 
 

 11.00AM  

 

 

8   Integrated Care Systems - Update on Greater Manchester and 

Salford Preparations  

 

(Pages 27 - 44) 

 11.30AM  

 

 

9   Work Programme.  

 

(Pages 45 - 48) 

10   Any other business.  

 

 

11   Date and time of next meeting - Wednesday 6 April 2022 at 
10.00am  

 

 

 
Contact Officer:   

Mike McHugh, Senior Democratic Services Officer E-Mail: mike.mchugh@salford.gov.uk 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/892376/COVID_stakeholder_engagement_synthesis_beyond_the_data.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/892376/COVID_stakeholder_engagement_synthesis_beyond_the_data.pdf


The return to face to face council meetings 
 
The temporary regulations enabling remote meetings expired on 7 May 2021 and the 
Government now requires meetings of the full council, Cabinet, committees, panels 
and boards (that are open to the public) to be held in public so members of the public 
can attend in person. 
 
A tremendous effort has gone into trying to ensure that any council meetings taking 
place in person will be held in a COVID-19 secure environment.  Your safety is our 
utmost priority, whilst also supporting transparency, accountability and effective 
decision making. 

The venue for face to face meetings 
 
Meetings of the Planning & Transportation Regulatory Panel from 5th July will take 
place at 100 Embankment, Cathedral Approach, Salford, M3 7NJ, as this is the 
most appropriate, suitably sized venue available to the city council, where meetings of 
the panel can take place in a COVID-secure way.  

COVID-secure face to face meetings 
 
Listed below are some of the control measures that we have had to put in place at the 
meetings to minimise the risk of the transmission of the virus.  It is very important that 
all persons attending the meetings comply with the following:   
 
1. Please arrive at least 15 minutes before the start of the meeting to allow for 

controlled access to the building and meeting space. 
2. A marshal will be onsite to greet you and will escort you to the meeting. 
3. The meeting will be run in line with Government guidance, and using the principle 

of ‘hands, face and space’. Therefore, you are asked to regularly wash and sanitise 
your hands, wear a face covering at all times unless you hold a medical exemption, 
and please maintain a two metre distance from others at all times whilst in the 
building. 

4. Movement around the meeting spaces will be kept to an absolute minimum with 
pre-defined entrances and exits (the marshal onsite will cover this in more detail 
with you when you arrive). 

5. A vital element of our COVID-secure plans is that everyone attending should 
complete a COVID-19 lateral flow home tests three days before the meeting 
and on the morning of the meeting:  

 
 You can collect or order the home testing kits by: 

o Ordering a box of test kits to be delivered to your home 
o Collecting a box of test kits from a local collection point 

 
 If you test positive before or on the day you were meant to attend the meeting  

under no circumstances should you attend, please email your apologies to 
Democratic Services at decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Annex



 
6. Despite all the COVID-secure measures we have put in place there remains a 

residual risk and coronavirus can make anyone seriously ill. For some of you the 
risk is higher, particularly if… 
 you are clinically extremely vulnerable or if you are at significant risk 
 you have one or more health conditions as a number of risk factors may interact 

as well as health conditions. 
 

You may wish to take medical advice about your particular circumstances, if either 
of the above applies to you, before you make a decision about attending a face to 
face meeting.   

Travelling to 100 Embankment 
 By foot: A range of walking routes are available. 

 By train: Manchester Victoria Railway Station is a couple of minutes’ walk 
from 100 Embankment. 

 By car: Q-Park Deansgate North, 2 Chapel Street, Manchester, M3 7WJ, is 
located underneath the Embankment development. Parking can be pre-
booked on the website below. 

 
 Deansgate North Parking | Manchester Car Parks | Q-Park 

 
 

Page 2



Deep Dive Health Needs Black and Minority Ethnic (BAME) Groups 

including Refugees and People Seeking Asylum  

 

BME/BAME: Black Minority Ethnic/ Black Asian Minority Ethnic. 

Terminology used for UK Non-White descent. Sometimes includes 

other European Nationals.  

Asylum seekers and refugees are not a homogenous group but one 

that is diverse in its configuration comprising a population 

differentiated by culture, religion, beliefs, and social norms. 

Consequently, their social, economic and health needs cannot be 

addressed with a generic approach but should be considered within 

the context of an individualized, holistic model of care and service 

provision. 

 BME/BAME - Black and Minority Ethnic or Black, Asian and 

Minority Ethnic are the terminology normally used in the UK to 

describe people of non-white descent. Also sometimes include 

European nationals.  

 Refugee – A person given refugee status is normally granted 

leave to remain in the UK for 5 years and at the end of that 

period can apply for Indefinite Leave to Remain.  

 People Seeking Asylum - A person who has fled her/his own 

country and applies to the government of another country for 

protection as a refugee. 

 Refused Asylum Seekers - When all appeal rights have been 

exhausted, they may be referred to as 'refused' or 'failed' 

asylum seekers.  

 Resettled Refugees - Refugees who arrive via resettlement 

programmes (such as the Gateway Programme or the Syrian, 

Afghanistan Vulnerable Persons scheme) have their status 

recognised by the UK government before arriving in the UK and 

Page 3

Agenda Item 7



often have a dedicated package of support to assist in 

orientation and integration and, in some cases, help offset 

costs to health and social care services.  

 Migrants - a person who moves from one place to another to 

find work or better living conditions.  

 Immigrants - a person who comes to live permanently in a 

foreign country. 

 International students - An international student is defined as 

an individual who is enrolled for credit at an accredited higher 

education institution in the UK on a temporary visa, and who is 

not an immigrant or an undocumented immigrant, or a 

refugee. 

 Trends  

The population of Salford grew by 17,830 (8%) between 2001 and 

2011. It may change even increase when the new census 2021 will be 

available. This included a 20,728 (132%) increase in the BAME 

population overall, much higher than the national average (68%) for 

this period. In terms of specific ethnic groups, Salford’s Black African 

population rose by 4,645 (655%), with other major increases seen for 

Other Asian (1,453; 339%), Other Black (387; 289%), White/Black 

African (740; 233%) and White Other (7,002; 198%). Over the same 

period the White British population fell slightly (-2,898; -1%), while 

the White Irish population fell by 988 (26%).  

 According to 2011 census there were 36,488 people in Salford 

from BAME background and there are now 16,085 people in 

Salford who do not speak English as their main language, with 

over 70 languages being spoken in total. Between 2001 and 

2011 Salford’s BAME population grew by 20,728 (132%) 

compared to a 68% increase seen nationally (Ref-Salford BME 

Health assessment needs 2016). The BAME population is 

increasing and based on projected population trends, by 2051 

Page 4



in Salford it is estimated that the BAME population will have 

increased to approximately 90,000 people (31.7% of the total 

population). The list of people who are not included or 

recorded in the census but access health services in Salford are: 

 people who have been trafficked to the UK 

 ethnic groups e.g., the Roma, Kurds 

 refused asylum seekers who are destitute 

 new refugees 

 students 

 undocumented migrants 

 migrants who have come to join their families 

 already in Salford 

 non- British employees and their families 

 

 Settled BME Communities in Salford 

There is currently no formal umbrella forum for BAME groups in 

Salford. We do have large number of individual organisations active 

in Salford representing different communities. Salford Forum for 

Refugees and People Seeking Asylum is the only formal umbrella 

forum representing different refugee groups and communities.  

Initially it is important to understand the issues BAME and Refugees 

encounter with NHS services and their on-going experiences of 

working and living in the City of Salford. This requires good listening 

ear, cultural understanding, and the ability to communicate Salford’s 

visions, plans and services. 

 Visible Outcomes is a social enterprise based in at the University of 

Salford working and supporting local BAME groups, Refugees and 

Page 5



people seeking asylum and individuals to consider their views in 

accessing health & social care services in Salford. Visible Outcomes 

4U regularly interacts with council and other services providers 

which enables them to build a bridge between service providers and 

BAME ensuring their voice is heard and acted upon.  Visible 

Outcomes contacted and interacted with more than 50 different 

communities and individuals in and around Salford to grasp their 

engagement experience with the NHS as well as challenges they had 

encountered because of changes and policies and the practices 

within NHS. In seeking BAME Visible Outcomes had lots of different 

conversations every day and could really make a difference. For 

refugees and people seeking asylum NHS for them is GP, Pharmacy, 

Dentist, and hospital. Most of the people we spoke with are not 

aware of other services available, who are aware are not sure how to 

access them.  

Main languages spoken by Salford residents (aged 3 and over) in 

2011  

Main Language Number % 
English 207,827 92.8% 

Polish 3,526 1.6% 

Arabic 1,047 0.5% 

French 841 0.4% 
Portuguese 785 0.4% 

Urdu 524 0.2% 

Yiddish 464 0.2% 
Persian/Farsi 380 0.2% 

Slovak 359 0.2% 

Spanish 328 0.1% 

Other 6,434 2.9% 
Source: Nomis – 2011 Census  

 

 

Page 6



Findings and Recommendations  

Engagement work with BAME communities suggested that to reduce 

barriers communication is pivotal to improve the health experience 

of BAME communities and addressing health inequalities if any. 

Interpreting provision needs to be better regulated and more widely 

disseminated. It was also suggested that CCG should emphasis on 

providing or commissioning local BAME groups on health education 

in culturally appropriate and user-friendly formats. Newly arrived 

migrants, refugees and people seeking asylum who can’t speak 

English fluently suggested that health classes or sessions should be 

provided to learn the language of health which will help them to 

communicate to speak up about their health conditions. Effective 

engagement and changes will produce sustainable and long-term 

improvement.  

Engaging with the BAME communities demonstrated that there are 

still some issues and barriers between BAME service users and 

clinicians caused by change in legislations to access health care 

services. Working together in partnership with different community 

groups and service providers will resolve some of the issues. Visible 

Outcomes Health and Social Care ambassadors suggested verity of 

methods to resolve health inequalities that includes providing 

information in different languages, helping patients who can’t speak 

English to book appointments, help with completing forms.  

 Established BAME community organisations 

There is a need to reach out to local organisations to commission 

work in the community. It will be without any doubt be a great value 

for the money because local organisations not only know the area 

but also community members who need help and support. 

 Recommendation 

Page 7



Reaching out and engaging with local organisations and recognise 

the work they are delivering in the community.  

1. Commissioners and other service providers should ensure 

BAME communities are actively engaged in all service 

developments, at all stages from start to end. This will meet 

public and Patient Involvement requirements and Equalities 

Duties.  

2. Very important to understand different groups within BAME 

and their rights and entitlement when accessing health 

services. It will save money and deliver good service.  

3. Health Service providers should use a community development 

approach for engagement with BAME communities. This may 

include providing appropriate resources for: 

 Dialogue around difficult to engage issues with BAME 

community organisations.   

 Working partnership with BAME organisations in the 

delivery of preventive services, including screening and 

other services.  

 Engaging and recognizing the role of BAME children and 

young people as key stakeholders in promoting better 

health and social care practice in Salford.  

4. Bespoke training for service providers and service users to 

understand different groups within BAME and services 

provided by the NHS Salford.  

5. ESOL for health should be commissioned to improve health 

literacy. ESOL for health might be the start to raise awareness 

with the service users about the services available or services 

provided directly or indirectly both clinical and non-clinical by 

Salford NHS. 

Page 8



6. Promoting Cultural brokerage and supporting BAME 

organisations will be helpful to develop the skills required to 

deliver health services effectively.  

7. More engagement work needed with BAME communities and 

with service providers with the remit to embrace, educate and 

integrate BAME communities and health professionals. This will 

improve access, communication and understanding of BAME 

and health professionals.   

8. BAME Health & Social Care Ambassadors and commissioners 

should work in partnership to develop a training package for 

commissioners and service providers. Training should focus on 

how best to support and develop BAME organisations in 

addressing barriers to health services.   

 Access to Healthcare  

Understanding the requirement to register with a GP and practice 
boundaries 

 Many people come from countries where healthcare is not 
accessed through registration and are not aware of the UK GP 
gatekeeper role. 

 Some new arrivals do not understand that healthcare will be 

provided free and are deterred from registering due to poverty. 
Rumours of future charging for migrants is also putting people 
off registering or attending for tests. 

 The housing providers no longer provide routine information 
and help to register with GPs. 

 GP receptionists often ask for a passport and utilities bill 
despite repeated information from the NHS, CCG, BMA and 
RCGP to the contrary in the past 5 years 

 Practice boundaries are difficult to manage when people are 
being moved frequently.  

 

The role of the GP 

Page 9



 Some people are coming from healthcare systems with direct 
access to specialist care. Their expectations of the GP can 
include automatic referral on demand. 

  A mismatch between expectations and reality can create 
conflict or disappointment when sufficient time is not devoted 
to explaining the NHS processes. 

 Some people coming from areas where medications such as 
antibiotics and anti-malarial are used frequently without 
prescription feel ‘fobbed off’ with advice to manage conditions 
with simple analgesia and antipyretics. 

 Preventative care and management of long-term conditions are 
often not high priority for people experiencing insecurity and 
extreme poverty. They lack the means to follow healthy 
lifestyle advice. 

 

Understanding the right to have an appropriate independent 
interpreter 

 Many people are regularly asked to bring a friend or family 
member to interpret for them despite this being recognised as 
risky practice in the NHS. 

 Gender, dialect, and patient choice requirements are often 
ignored 

 Telephone interpretation is of poor quality and patients 
struggle to disclose emotional issues using these means. 

 Confidentiality and trust are barriers to using an interpreter, 
but practitioners rarely make it explicit that these are 
recognised in law. 

 

Longer consultation times 

It is rare for a person seeking asylum to present with a single 

problem. Their needs are multifactorial and complex. Longer 
appointment times are often necessary but rarely given. 
 

Telephone triage 

Page 10



 People seeking asylum often lack credit on their phones for 
outgoing calls. Being kept on hold for periods of time can 
substantially eat into their very limited finances. 

 Language barriers for those who can manage some English 
face-to-face are magnified on the telephone. 

 Waiting for call back causes great anxiety and disruption 

 Requests to disclose the nature of the problem to an unseen 
individual are problematic. People often struggle to be able to 
articulate the nature of their problems easily e.g., presenting 
with physical pain with a psychological origin. 

 

Disclosure 

 Lack of trust of people in authority causes reticence in 
disclosing traumatic incidents.  

 People seeking asylum are not sufficiently aware of 

confidentiality between the Home Office and the NHS. 

 Lack of continuity of care often requires an asylum seeker to 
repeat their traumatic history to many different practitioners 
leading to re-traumatisation 

 Patients often report being disbelieved by medical practitioners 
 

Medicines management 

 Drug labels and instructions printed in English can be 
incomprehensible 

 There is a lack of understanding on lengths of treatment 
courses 

 Repeat medication ordering systems re hard to navigate 

 Follow-up appointments to check compliance are rare despite 
the chaotic nature of the patient group 

 It is not uncommon for people to take unsupervised medicines 
sent from home or those belonging to friends and family 

 There is a lack of awareness about the indications for 

medication – e.g. patients talking about sleeping tablets when 
they mean antidepressants 

Page 11



Letters 

 Lack of awareness of the importance of certain letters to the 
welfare of people seeking asylum and new refugees 

 Charging for letters making them out of the reach of people 
who need them 

 Lack of skill in undertaking medico-legal reporting leading to 

poor credibility in court 

Referrals 

 Referrals are often made to secondary care sites unknown to 

the patient and without geographical information to get there. 

 Navigating the hospital building can be difficult 

 Referral letters are sometimes not making the requirement for 
an interpreter clear. 

 Although bus fares can be reclaimed people must have the cash 
to get there in the first place. Asylum seekers on section 4 
support do not receive any cash benefits. Location of the 
offices to reclaim fares and language barriers prevent them 
from claiming 

 Test results ordered by clinicians in hospital are not always 

available to GPs. Patients find this difficult to manage. 
   

DNAs 

 Competing priorities with greater immediate importance such 
as signing at the immigration reporting centre or appointments 
with their solicitor can mean last minute changes to schedules 
and DNA medical appointments.  

 Opt-in services with welcome letters in English cause problems 
for patients who are unaware they need to respond to receive 
an appointment 

 Many healthcare systems around the world do not operate a 

strict appointments system and this must be clearly explained 
the patients 

Reluctance to complain 

 Lack of understanding of what to expect from a GP 

Page 12



 Lack of awareness of the processes through which to complain 

 Fear of being treated differently after a complaint 

 Fear of being removed form a GP list and being unable to 

access any care in future. 
 
Mental Health 

Engaging with BAME communities gave Visible Outcomes an 
insight to identify barriers to access mental health services. The 
barriers to access services were both cultural and structural.   
Issues and Barriers 

 People said that services provided are not culturally sensitive.  

 People said that culturally- sensitive psychological services 
needs to be developed which are accessible in a range of 
different languages. 

 People said that more BAME staff needs to be employed that 
understands cultural sensitivity and speaks their language.  

Diabetes 

 In Salford, approximately 12,000 people have Diabetes and of 
those around 90% (10,800) have Type 2 diabetes. There is a direct 
link between Diabetes and ethnicity as self-reported diabetes 
prevalence in men is highest Indian (10.1%), Black Caribbean 
(10.0%) and Bangladeshi (8.2%) populations. Rates in Pakistani 
and Black African men are also above average.  
Among women, the highest reported rates are in Pakistani women 
(8.6%) and Black Caribbean women (8.4%). Indian and Bangladeshi 
women also have above-average rates of diabetes. The Pakistani 
group is the only one where the female prevalence of diabetes 
appears to be higher than the male prevalence (Salford BME 
Health Needs 2016).   
Issues and barriers:  
People said that language is the main barrier as there is no or very 
few staff who could speak their language.  

 People also said that our friends and families in the community 
are suffering from diabetes, but we don’t know how to could 
get advice and help to live a healthy lifestyle.  

Page 13



 People also said that health agencies need to work closely with 
local organisations to raise awareness with BAME as they know 
the community and culture of the local BAME.  

 
 
Accessing A&E  
Issues and Barriers 

 People said language is the main barrier to use 111 services. 

 People said no privacy at the pharmacy and don’t want to 
shout over the counter.  

 Not aware or don’t know how to access non- clinical services as 
they need referral from GP or from any other health 
professionals.  

 People said we must go A&E rather than Self Care if GP is not 
available for minor ailments and injuries as we can’t afford to 
buy over-the-counter medicine.  

Dementia 
Dementia is now recognised as the most serious health and social 
care challenge in UK. There is very little information available of 
the experience of people from BAME background accessing 

services. Visible Outcomes supported and helped University of 
Salford to reach out to BAME living in Salford.  
Issues and Barriers 

 People said it is just a memory problem and comes with age.  

 People from Asian background said that culturally it is 
disrespectful to seek help from agencies when we could 
provide support as a family.  

 People said that they don’t know if there is any service 
available. 

 People said language is the main barrier to access services. 
 (Dementia report UOS 2017)  

 The main barrier to promoting inclusion and diversity in 
dementia services in Salford appears to be at the start of the 
Dementia Care Pathway. This is the information gap, which is 
connected to language, culture and participation in social 

Page 14



networks which extend outside of their own community, but 
also the ways in which services attempt to disseminate 
information and engage with BME communities.  

▪ Other barriers, which appear further down the dementia care 
pathway, include financial costs, NHS waiting times, and culturally 
appropriate diagnostic tools and care.  
 
Mental Health – Refugees and People Seeking Asylum 
Refugees and people seeking asylum are vulnerable to many 
mental health issues like PTSD, severe depression and anxiety. 
People Visible Outcomes engaged with told that stresses they are 
experiencing are both pre-exile and post exile stresses.  

Issues and Barriers 

 People said they don’t know if there are any mental health 
services and don’t know how to access the service.  

 People said we never heard of IAPT.  

 People said that they are scared to access to mental health 
services as they are not sure what their entitlements are as 
government is proposed introducing charging for health care 
for refused asylum seekers.  

 They don’t know how to access Specialist Asylum seekers 
service as GP’s are not aware of the service and don’t know 
how to refer them to this service.  

 Language is also a barrier to access the mental health service.  
 6.7 Access to GP services and A&E (Community Organisation) 
Good or bad experience of the services refugees and people 
seeking asylum receive from GP.  
Issues and Barriers 

 People said they don’t have monies in their phone to call and 
book and appointment with GP instead they go to A&E if 
needed.  

 People said as English is not their first language, they are 
unable to explain why they want to see GP.  

 People said sometimes they don’t get calls returned when they 

want to book an appointment with GP.  

Page 15



 People said too hard to book appointment over phone.  

 People said sometimes they must use their children as 
interpreters as GP services forget to book an interpreter.  

 People said they don’t know where to go if they are not happy 

with the service they receive from GP. 

 People said that it is difficult to register with GP as they ask for 
documents and all our documents are with the Home Office. 
One of the service users said he was without GP for 6 months.  

 People said that they are unable to explain their health issues 
over the phone and explain why they want to see GP and most 
of the times they are advised to take paracetamol and must 
access A&E.   

 
 
6.8 Right Place Right Treatment 

 People said we don’t know how to use 111 services and how it 
works. 

 People said as they can’t speak English it is difficult to use out 
of hours services available.   

 People said Language is the barrier to access services like 
pharmacists. 

 People said that we used pharmacy just to get our medication 
never heard they provide health advice. 

  

 People said pharmacist are very busy and have to wait hours to 

seek advice.  
 
Recommendations  

 
Recommendations of Health Needs Assessment of Black and 
Minority Ethnic Groups in Salford (2016) – Salford City Council 
Salford City Council Commissioned Dr Nicholas Riches, Specialist 
Trainee in Public Health to a study Health Needs Assessment of 
Black and Minority Ethnic Groups in Salford. Here are some of the 
recommendations from this report 

Page 16



Lifestyle factors 

 Smoking - Develop interventions to increase the uptake of 
smoking cessation services among groups currently 
underrepresented within the service in Salford (Asian men and 
Black African men and women) 

 Alcohol - Work to improve the provision of alcohol services for 

Eastern European populations. For example, through the 
employment of a Polish-language alcohol worker. 

 Physical activity - Consider interventions to increase the uptake 
of physical activity in groups currently reporting high levels of 
physical inactivity (including Pakistani and Bangladeshi 
communities) 

 Sexual health- Consider targeted health promotion work in 
groups reporting relatively high rates of STIs in Salford. 

 
Healthcare organisation (prevention) 
Health promotion 

 When designing health promotion strategies for different 
neighbourhoods in Salford, consider the composition of the 
area in terms of BME groups in addition to the health 

problems known to be specific to different ethnic groups. 

 Health promotion interventions for BME groups should 
include a focus (appropriately targeted) on cardiovascular 
disease, diabetes, renal disease, cancer prevention, 
smoking, alcohol, and sexual health. 

 Children’s services 

 Ensure mechanisms are in place to ensure that the children of 
newly dispersed asylum seekers receive timely input regarding 
their health (e.g. vaccination status) and social care (e.g. 
education) 

 Work with the Jewish communities to review how best to 
integrate school-based interventions within independent 
Jewish schools 

Page 17



 Work with Gypsy / Roma Traveller community to understand 
issues of access and uptake of routine child health services (e.g. 
vaccination, health visitors) 

Cardiovascular disease - Ensure health promotion interventions 
focusing on cardiovascular disease reflect the varying prevalence 
of disease according to ethnicity – for example, relatively high 
rates of coronary heart disease in South Asian populations and 
relatively high rates of stroke in Black populations 
Sexual health 

 Support work within the Black African community to reduce 
stigma around HIV and encourage testing 

 Work with communities to ensure that the HIV point-of-care 
intervention is appropriate and accessible to these 
populations. 

Cancer 

 Ensure that details of screening are available in a range of 
languages. 

 Work with community groups to raise awareness of cancer 
symptoms and routes to access appropriate care. 

 Consider more targeted health promotion interventions based 

on evidence of ethnic variations in cancer prevalence. For 
example, highlighting the symptoms of prostate cancer and 
myeloma among those of Black ethnicity using appropriate 
resources (e.g. Prostate Cancer UK has resources specifically 
targeted at the Black community) 

Recommendations of BME Health Check Project (2015) - Unique 
Improvements Salford 
The key recommendations from this learning are: - 
• Consistent branding and promotion of NHS Health Checks is key 
to raising awareness and knowledge 
• Salford residents should be given, more information on what 
NHS Health Checks is, what is involved and, by way of an incentive 
to participation, the benefits of completing a check 
• Closer relationships between the BME Communities and 
providers of NHS Health Checks are essential to increasing take up 

Page 18



of services, with the onus on services to promote NHS Health 
Checks across BME communities and/ or develop a better 
understanding of the needs of BME communities 
• Making NHS Health Checks more accessible by offering them in 
community venues, out of surgery hours and on weekend would 
increase access 
• Community and Faith Champions equipped to promote the 
positive benefits of NHS Health Checks 
• Providing information about the NHS Health Check in 
community languages, for example by using a central number or 
website and ensuring this is promoted on all local NHS Health 
Check publicity/correspondence 

Other practical recommendations  
• Allow sufficient lead in time to work with community-based 
organisations 
• Be flexible in the tools used to engage groups and be prepared 
to employ different tools at any stage 
• Engage with potential participants (providers, community 
groups and stakeholders) during the planning stages and secure 
buy-in before the project starts 
• Recognize the complexities of engaging with and collaborating 
with diverse community groups 
Recommendations of Salford Jewish Community Health Research 
Report (2015)  
Engagement & Communications 
1. A new, hard-hitting marketing campaign on immunisation 
should be developed, with the involvement of local Jewish 
doctors, community workers and Rabbis. The use of a stall over 2 
weeks around the Broughton Park area, with a bespoke leaflet 
endorsed by doctors and Rabbis, should be considered as well as 
working with the Hershel Weiss Centre. 
2. Consider funding a directory of health and care services or 
other means to promote awareness of what is available. 
3. A new health resource to be produced for all homes with key 
information on nutrition, healthcare, safeguarding, mental health, 

Page 19



immunizations etc. This would need to be written with the 
community (doctors, community workers and Rabbis) to allay any 
fears. Possible production in Yiddish should also be explored. 
4. A specific leaflet giving clear information on the role of 
pharmacists in giving health advice should be produced and 
disseminated regularly. 
Developing Services 
5. A major new initiative on men exercising should be put in place 
as soon as possible. 
6. The possibility of a walk-in clinic near to the main Salford Jewish 
community should be considered. 
7. A wider, and substantial, healthy living activity programme 

should be created and promoted through a partnership of 
voluntary & community sector organisations with the NHS and 
Local Authority. This should include gender and age-appropriate 
approaches. 
8. A new, proactive mental health programme should be created 
and promoted through a similar partnership. This would include 
new group work and an active programme of promotion to reduce 
stigma in the community. 
9. Both the NHS and voluntary and community sector 
organisations should address the need for more Counsellors and 
explore social enterprise and volunteering approaches. 
10. There is a need to recruit male nurses to support Orthodox 
Jewish men where requested. 
11. Voluntary sector agencies should look to meet the need for 
improved access to speech and occupational therapies and mental 
health services. 
12. The possibility of a Salford Jewish Health Helpline should be 
explored to better support those who do not use the internet. 
13. Further work should be undertaken to see whether a separate 
helpline, or one that gives information on a range of services – 
health, education, benefits etc. – would best serve the 
community. 
 

Page 20



Addressing Barriers and Challenges 
14. A comprehensive training programme for all health 
professionals who may encounter members of the Orthodox 
Jewish community should be in place so that they understand 
religious and cultural issues and can empathise with patients. 
15. Both the NHS and voluntary organisations should develop the 
role of advocates from the Jewish community to help address 
difficulties in engagement between some patients and health 
professionals, especially about in hospital care and end of life 
support. 
16. The Local Safeguarding Boards should work with Jewish 
charities on raising awareness of child and domestic abuse, 

support available and strengthening those support systems. 
17. There should be reviews of the internal workings of hospitals, 
mental health services, GP services, maternity care and therapy 
services in response to these findings to improve their 
engagement with the Jewish community. 
18. Local Jewish voluntary & community sector organisations 
should undertake a review of SEN services in response to these 
findings to improve the experience of families within the 
community. 
19. A new End of Life Care pathway should be developed and 
promoted by a partnership of NHS and local Jewish voluntary & 
community sector organisations to reassure the community of 
their safety. 
 
1. Conclusion 
Engagement work with BAME communities suggested that to 
reduce barriers communication is pivotal to improve the health 
experience of BAME communities and addressing health 
inequalities if any. Interpreting provision needs to be better 
regulated and more widely disseminated. It was also suggested 
that CCG should emphasis on providing or commissioning local 
BAME groups on health education in culturally appropriate and 
user-friendly formats. Newly arrived migrants, refugees and 

Page 21



people seeking asylum who can’t speak English fluently suggested 
that health classes or sessions should be provided to learn the 
language of health which will help them to communicate to speak 
up about their health conditions. Effective engagement and 
changes will produce sustainable and long-term improvement.  
Engaging with the BAME communities demonstrated that there 
are still some issues and barriers between BAME service users and 
clinicians caused by change in legislations to access health care 
services. Working together in partnership with different 
community groups and service providers will resolve some of the 
issues. Visible Outcomes Health and Social Care ambassadors 
suggested verity of methods to resolve health inequalities that 

includes providing information in different languages, helping 
patients who can’t speak English to book appointments, help with 
completing forms.  
 
2. Recommendation 

 Reaching out and engaging with local organisations and 
recognise the work they are delivering in the community.  

 Commissioners and other service providers should ensure 
BAME communities are actively engaged in all service 
developments, at all stages from start to end. This will meet 
public and Patient Involvement requirements and Equalities 
Duties.  

 Very important to understand different groups within BAME 
and their rights and entitlement when accessing health 
services. It will save money and deliver good service.  

 Health Service providers should use a community 
development approach for engagement with BAME 
communities. This may include providing appropriate 
resources for: 

1. Dialogue around difficult to engage issues with BAME 
community organisations.   
2. Working partnership with BAME organisations in the delivery of 
preventive services, including screening and other services.  

Page 22



3. Engaging and recognizing the role of BAME children and young 
people as key stakeholders in promoting better health and social 
care practice in Salford.  
4. Bespoke training for service providers and service users to 
understand different groups within BAME and services provided 
by the Salford NHS. 
5. ESOL for health should be commissioned to improve health 
literacy. ESOL for health might be the start to raise awareness 
with the service users about the services available or services 
provided directly or indirectly both clinical and non-clinical by 
Salford CCG. 
6. Promoting Cultural brokerage and supporting BAME 

organisations will be helpful to develop the skills required to 
deliver health services effectively.  
7. More engagement work needed with BAME communities and 
with service providers with the remit to embrace, educate and 
integrate BAME communities and health professionals. This will 
improve access, communication and understanding of BAME and 
health professionals.   
8. BAME Health & Social Ambassadors and commissioners should 
work in partnership to develop a training package for 
commissioners and service providers. Training should focus on 
how best to support and develop BAME organisations in 
addressing barriers to health services. 
 
Covid-19 Pandemic  
 
  Regardless of the COVID-19 pandemic, refugees and asylum 
seekers have been affected in variety of ways and at different 
levels. They were despite experiencing comparable levels of 
distress, less likely to seek out or be referred to mental or other 
health services compared to the general population. The lack of 
available translated information about COVID-19, and difficulties 
navigating the healthcare system left refugees and asylum seekers 
with limited English proficiency to the vast social media to obtain 

Page 23



information and advice that may be inaccurate, stress inducing, 
and even mythical. During this period of uncertainty, we were in 
contact with refugees and asylum seekers however we could. We 
made sure that there is at least one link that exists where they 
could reach us anytime. All issues mentioned below if combined 
creates different modes of discrimination and privilege. As English 
is not their first language, they were unable to access any support 
available to tackle issues below.  
Limited access to technology: Health inequality had worsened 
during the covid-19 pandemic in the refugees and asylum seekers. 
Not all refugees and asylum seekers had excess to internet and as 
a result digital exclusion played into that trend. “There was a 

massive overlap between digital exclusion and social exclusion, 
and then social exclusion and poverty, and poverty and health 
inequalities.  
 Fear of going out/Anxiety:  A slightly higher number of refugees 
and asylum seekers told us they found it hard to find and 
understand information about Covid-19, and advice about how to 
access services and to keep well. Therefore, they were scared and 
worried because of rising numbers of BAME contracting the virus 
and the likelihood of more serious outcomes once sick.  
 More people at food banks: The coronavirus (COVID-19) 
outbreak had made it much more difficult for many refugees and 
asylum seekers to access food banks.  
 Hard to get children motivated: Even though younger people 
were a low-risk group for the virus itself, BAME children and 
young people, specifically experienced the pandemic differently 
from their peers. Refugee and asylum seekers children were less 
likely to have proper access to online learning because of no 
access to equipment or to internet.  
People with a disability even more isolated: These groups 
included the old, people with certain disabilities, were unable to 
access normal services during the lock down.  
 Language & literacy barriers: No or limited English made it 
difficult to access services online. 

Page 24



Prevention and infection control: Refugees and asylum seekers 
were much less aware of the government’s life-saving public 
health messaging around Covid-19, leaving them under-protected 
and vulnerable to coronavirus.   
Social media and WhatsApp: As traditional way of using posters 
and flyers neither reach or work with refugees and asylum seekers 
because most of the information is provided in English language. 
Therefore, most of the refugees and asylum seekers were left 
behind in knowing about the important messages by the govt or 
by local statutory organisation to improve their health and well-
being and stop covid-19 from spreading. As a result, they were 
more vulnerable to this pandemic by not following the govt 

guidelines.  
Virtual Refugee and asylum seekers Hub:  We lack virtual Refugee 
and asylum seekers hub in Salford and therefore it was 
exceedingly difficult for statutory or non-statutory organisations 
to reach out to them with any important messages or information 
during this pandemic.   
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



                                        ITEM NO. 

 
REPORT OF  

 
THE DEPUTY CITY MAYOR 

STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR PEOPLE 

 
TO 

 
HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY PANEL 

 

2 MARCH 2022 

 
 
TITLE:   INTEGRATED CARE SYSTEMS – UPDATE ON GREATER 

MANCHESTER AND SALFORD PREPARATIONS   

   

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel is asked to note and comment on this report 
and the preparations being made for the introduction of an Integrated Care System in 

Greater Manchester, and local preparations in Salford.     

 
EXECTIVE SUMMARY 

 
The Health and Care Bill sets out plans for the future of health and care, including the 

statutory creation of Integrated Care Systems.   The Bill also sets out Government 
plans to improve collaborative working, empower local leaders, and address health 
inequalities.  Subject to parliamentary consideration and progress, the Bill envisages 

that changes would originally be introduced by 1 April 2022, although this has 
recently been deferred until 1 July 2022.  

 
For Salford, the Integrated Care System will exist at a Greater Manchester level. 
Reforms will mean changes to governance and decision making – both at Greater 

Manchester and in Salford; to locality leadership and day-to-day officer roles; to 
finance and risk sharing arrangements; and to mechanisms to support enhanced 

provider collaboration.  
 
This report updates the Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel on the preparatory 

work across Greater Manchester, and specifically on the detailed proposals emerging 
in Salford.  It sets out the decisions that will need to be taken by the City Mayor (in 

consultation with Cabinet) and by Full Council, and the timetable for those decisions,  
in order to ensure arrangements are fully reflected in the City Council’s Constitution 
and financial and policy framework.  

 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  
 

NHS Long Term Plan, 2019 

 Page 27

Agenda Item 8



NHSE policy paper ‘Integrating Care – next steps to building strong and effective 
care system”, 2020 

 
White Paper, “Integration and Innovation – working together to improve health and 

social care for all”, Feb 2021 
 

 
1. BACKGROUND 

 

1.1. In February 2021, the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care tabled 
before Parliament the White Paper “Integration and Innovation: working 

together to improve health and social care for all”, setting out a blueprint for 
the future of health and care.  This included a number of reforms to the 

Health and Care Act centred on the creation of Integrated Care Systems 
nationally.  Proposals in the White Paper built on proposals set out in the 
2020 NHS England policy paper “Integrating Care – the next steps to building 

strong and effective care systems across England.”  This paper itself built on 
‘route map’ originally set out in the NHS Long Term Plan published in 

January 2019.  
 

1.2. The 2021 White Paper set out the Government’s legislative proposals for a 

Health and Care Bill, including plans to create statutory integrated care 
systems, remove the barriers to collaborative working, empower local leaders 
and address health inequalities.  In setting out its plans, Government stated 

that: 
 

“Our proposals will help the NHS and local government in the immediate 
work of recovery from the pandemic by making joint planning and 
delivery of services easier, and over the long term by helping to address 

the needs of everyone, from children to older people, at different stages 
of their lives.”   

 
1.3 Proposals included establishment of statutory Integrated Care Systems 

(ICS), made up of an ICS NHS Body and an ICS Health and Care 

Partnership (together referred to as the ICS).  The ICS NHS Body would be 
responsible for:  

 

 developing a plan to meet the health needs of the population within 

their defined geography; 

 developing a capital plan for the NHS providers within their health 
geography;  and 

 Securing the provision of health services to meet the needs of the 
system population. 

 
1.4 For Salford, the ICS will be formed at Greater Manchester level.  The changes 

also mean that the GM ICS will take on the commissioning responsibilities of 

the 10 GM CCGs, who would cease to exist as separate entities.  Other core 
elements of the reforms include: 

 
• An expectation that arrangements for operating as ‘integrated care 

systems’ (ICS) are agreed during 2021/22  

Page 28



• Confirmation that provider collaboratives must be established to better 
join up services across systems. 

• A plan for localised ‘place-based’ arrangements, with a ‘place leader’ 
who will work on behalf of the NHS and local partnerships   

• An expectation that clinical and professional leadership must continue 
to be at the forefront of both the system and place-based 
arrangements. 

• Confirmation that the systems and places should continue to be publicly 
accountable. 

 
1.5 Subject to Parliamentary approval, it was originally planned that new 

arrangements would take effect from 1 April 2022.   Government have 

confirmed (on 24 December) that in order to allow sufficient Parliamentary 
time, implementation will now take effect from 1 July 2022.  Discussions at 

Greater Manchester, amongst local authority and CCG chief officers, and 
Leaders, have confirmed that work to agree and formalise the ICS will 
continue so as to ensure we maintain the current momentum.  

 
1.6 Development of the GM ICS arrangements has been led by the GM Health 

and Social Care Partnership, reporting to the GM Mayor.   
 
1.7 Within Salford, development of our own locality arrangements has been led by 

a cross-sector, pan-organisation Transition Board.   The Transition Board has 
been co-chaired by the Deputy City Mayor (and Lead Member for Adult 

Services, Health and Wellbeing) and the Chair NHS Salford CCG.   The 
Transition Board includes representatives from SCC (Lead and Support 
Members covering adult and children’s services, as well as the Chief 

Executive, Strategic Director for People, Director of Public Health, and Chief 
Finance Officer), Salford NHS CCG, Salford Care Organisation, Northern Care 

Alliance, primary care, VCSE, GMMH, and Health Watch.    
 
1.8 Day-to-day strategic leadership has been provided by the SCC Chief 

Executive, Strategic Director for People and Chief Accountable Officer NHS 
Salford CCG.   Four programme work streams are in place to develop detailed 

proposals, with each accountable and reporting to the Transition Board: 
 

 Governance – to develop locality governance, decision making and 

strategic planning proposals.  SCC input has been led by the Assistant 
Director Policy and Performance, with support from the Monitoring 

Officer and the Shared Legal Service 
 

 Locality leadership - to develop proposals for the place-based lead role, 

and the Salford Locality Team (post CCG), including organisational 
development support, and support for CCG staff.  SCC input has been 

led by the Assistant Director HROD.  
 

 Finance and risk – focused on understanding financial flows, the impact 

on Salford organisational budgets and services, and developing a new 
Partnership Agreement and risk share arrangements.  SCC input has 

been led by the Chief Finance Officer.  
 

Page 29



 Provider collaboration - focused on developing enhanced clinical and 
professional collaboration, with a formal link to governance and decision 

making through the Provider Collaborative.  SCC input has been led by 
senior officers within public health, adults and children’s social care.  

 

1.9 This report sets out the arrangements being developed at Greater 
Manchester and how they will be implemented in Salford.  It also sets out the 

decision making timeline for SCC in order for arrangements to be formally 
reflected in the City Council’s Constitution, financial planning and budget 

strategy.  
 

2. GREATER MANCHESTER ICS ARRANGEMENTS 

 

2.1. Development of the Greater Manchester ICS is being led by the GM Health 

and Social Care Partnership.  Salford is represented in these arrangements 
via the Deputy City Mayor, the Strategic Director for People and the NHS 
Salford CCG Chief Accountable Officer.  Key issues of concern to the 10 

local authorities are also discussed and shaped by the GMCA Wider 
Leadership Team.  
 

2.2. Since 2001, Greater Manchester has been at the forefront of integrated care 
in the UK. In November 2014, leaders across the ten local authorities signed 

a unique deal with Government to devolve a wide range of powers, budgets, 
and responsibilities to the GM Combined Authority (GMCA) and an elected 

GM Mayor.  In April 2016, Greater Manchester took control and responsibility 
for its £6bn health and social care budget and has been working together to 
deliver sustainable, integrated health and care ever since. 

 
2.3. In September 2020, the GM Health and Social Care Partnership (GMHSCP) 

commissioned a review to inform the future direction and shape of health and 
care across Greater Manchester, and to do so in the context of the NHS 
Long Term Plan, and emerging NHSE plans for Integrated Care Systems. 

The Review confirmed four core priorities: 
 

 Tackling inequalities and transforming population health; 
 

 Guaranteeing constitutional standards and eliminating unwarranted 
variations in care 
 

 Connect health, social care, academia and industry to discover, develop 
and deploy innovation at pace and scale; and  
 

 Achieve comprehensive system sustainability across health and social 
care for the long term.  

 

2.4. The direction of travel set out in the GM Review and in the White Paper 
mirrored each other – and reflect the next stage local working relationships.    

 
• Stronger partnerships in local places between the NHS, local 

government and others with a more central role for primary care in 
providing joined-up care. 
 

Page 30



• Provider organisations being asked to step forward in formal 
collaborative arrangements that allow them to operate at scale. 

 
• Developing strategic commissioning through systems with a focus on 

population health outcomes. 
 

• The use of digital and data to drive system working, connect health and 

care providers, improve outcomes and put the citizen at the heart of 
their own care. 

 
2.5. The Health and Care Bill provides the legislative framework for the changes 

outlined in the White Paper.  Each ICS must have in place an Integrated 

Care Board (ICB) which is the new NHS body and an Integrated Care 
Partnership (ICP) comprising as a minimum representatives of the ICB and 

each local authority within the area of the ICS.  Work has been ongoing to 
design the GM ICS in line with this legislative framework.  There are five core 
elements to the formal governance and leadership arrangements at Greater 

Manchester: 
 

 The GM NHS ICB  
 The GM NHS ICS Health and Care Partnership Board (ICP) 

 The GM Joint Planning and Delivery Group 

 GM Provider Collaborative(s) 

 GM Clinical and Care Senate  

  

 These arrangements are illustrated below.  Details of sub-committees, terms 
of reference, and membership are still being finalised. 

 
 Figure 1: Proposed GM Governance, from 1 July 2022 (tbc) 
 

 
 
2.6. Following a national recruitment exercise, Sir Richard Leese has been 

appointed as the Chair of the GM ICS.  This is an independent role, and Sir 
Richard will not be representing the GMCA or local authorities in this role.   Page 31



 
2.7. An initial recruitment exercise in November 2021, failed to appoint a Chief 

Executive for the GM ICS.  It is expected further interviews will take place in 
February and March.  Interviews and subsequent appointments to other 

executive and director level roles within the GM ICS are expected to take 
place in mid-February, enabling any newly appointed Chief Executive to be 
involved in those decisions.  

 
2.8 As a result of changes outlined in the Health and Care Act, CCG’s will cease 

to exist as legal entities from 1 April (now 1 July) 2022.  It is planned that 
CCG staff will from that date be employees of the GM ICS.  Staff below 
Executive level (CCG Assistant Director and below) will have employment 

guarantees with the GM ICS.  A period of consultation with staff was 
undertaken in late 2021.  Staff will be employed at GM – but will then be 

employed either in GM roles, or deployed to roles in ‘locality teams’.  The 
details of the roles are still being developed.   

 

2.9 Executive level CCG staff do not have the same employment guarantee.  A 
period of consultation was held in late 2021, and continue.  It is envisaged 

that staff will need to compete for the Executive level roles within the GM 
ICS.  Executive level appointments are expected to be undertaken from 
March 2022.   
 

3. SALFORD LOCALITY  ARRANGEMENTS 

 

3.1. Salford already has one of the most integrated health and care systems 
nationally and in Greater Manchester.   Salford City Council (SCC) and 

Salford CCG (SCCG) have a long and successful history of integrated 
commissioning for health and social care. 

 

 Pooled budgets have been in place since 2001 for areas such as 
learning difficulties, community equipment, and in 2009 intermediate 

care.   
 

 An integrated commissioning team was established in 2010, comprising 
joint commissioning roles across health and social care, to ensure high 

quality, efficiency and effective services for residents.  This team covers 
areas such as mental health, learning difficulties, carers, advocacy, 
social care, etc and works closely with organisation specific teams.  

These arrangements play an important role in enabling good practice to 
be implemented for the benefit of all our residents. 
 

 In 2014 the Older People’s Pooled budget was established – with a 
value of £112m.  This was followed in 2016 by significantly increased 

pooling in the Adults Pool to a value of £240m, extending the scope of 
the pool to include all adults. The Adults Pool now covers a range of 

services and service providers, not all of which are provided by the ICO. 
Integrated governance was first established via the Integrated Adult 
Health and Social Care Commissioning Joint Committee (ICJC) 

ensuring that decisions were taken jointly by the Council and CCG.  
 

Page 32



3.2. In April 2019, the City Council and Salford CCG, agreed to further integration 
and agreed an Integrated Fund of almost £600m, which including funding for 

nearly all CCG health functions, and for a significant portion of the Council’s 
funding for children’s, adults, and public health functions.  Integrated decision 

making, joint planning and commissioning, and an integrated fund and risk 
share agreement were put in place to support these arrangements. 
 

3.3. The formal governance arrangements that have been in place since 2019 are 
illustrated in the figure below.  These arrangements were designed to ensure 

continued democratic oversight.     
 
Figure 2: Salford Integrated Commissioning Governance, March 2021 

 

 
 

 
ICS – Locality arrangements, from July 2022 

 

3.4. There are four core elements to the Locality operating model being 
developed to support the GM ICS – and which will form the core elements of 

the ICS arrangements in Salford, and each of the 10 Greater Manchester 
districts.   The Operating Model is illustrated below, and is designed to be 
underpinned by strengthened integrated neighbourhood working.  The Model 

will also be underpinned by revised financial and risk share arrangements. 
 

 A Locality Board 

 A Place Lead 

 A Locality Provider Collaborative 

 A Locality Clinical and Care Senate 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 33



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Figure 3: ICS Locality Core Operating Model 
 

 
 

3.2 The core elements of the model as they are developing in Salford are outlined 
here.  

 
Locality Board 

 
3.5. The Health and Care Locality Board will have overarching responsibility for all 

matters relating to health and care in Salford, including setting the principles 

and strategic direction across the full responsibilities of the Salford health and 
care system, so as to give effect to the Salford Locality Plan.    It will replace 

the existing Health and Care Board. The Locality Board is a partnership 
between Salford and the GM ICS. The Board will also have responsibility for 
any joint funding and partnership agreement, (with the exception of any 

reserved matters), between SCC and the GM Integrated Care Board. 
 

3.6. More specifically, the role of the Locality Board will be to: 
 

 Lead the development of locality level strategy for health and care, to 

improve population health and outcomes, and reduce inequalities 

 Oversee the co-ordination and transformation of local health and care 

services 

 Strategically manage the resource allocation and integrated budget(s) 

including sharing risk and making investment/disinvestment decisions to 
shift funding towards prevention and early intervention Page 34



 Provide quality and performance oversight and assurance, driving 
improvement and addressing unwarranted variation  

 Align whole system clinical, political and organisational leadership across 
the locality 

 Provide dual accountability, from the locality to individual organisations, 
including the Greater Manchester Integrated Care Board and vice versa  

 
3.7. The Transition Board has focused on defining the principles, membership 

and voting arrangements by which the Board will operate.    

 
3.8. The emerging preferred model recommended by the Transition Board, is for 

a Joint Committee, established under Regulation 10(2) of the NHS Bodies 
and Local Authorities Partnership Arrangements, Regulations 2000. In this 
case, the Locality Board will be a Joint Committee of the GM ICB and Salford 

City Council, where both parties are delegating decision making (in line with 
the Board’s responsibilities) to the Board as a whole, and not to individual 

members of the Board.  GM is currently undertaking work that looks at 
different types of committee arrangements, to understand the flexibilities 
conferred by the Health and Care Bill.  Final arrangements remain subject to 

legal confirmation and what is permissible under current legislation.   
 

3.9. Current proposals envisage an inclusive membership of the Locality Board – 
with 27 members drawn from the city council, primary care, mental health, 
the NCA (SRFT), Salford Care Organisation, the VCSE, and the GM ICB.  

The Place Lead and Salford Provider Collaborative would also be members. 
City Council would have 10 members of the Board: the City Mayor; Statutory 

Deputy City Mayor, Deputy City Mayor (and Lead Member for Adult Services, 
Health and Wellbeing), Executive Support Member for Social Care and 
Mental Health, Lead Member for Children’s and Young People’s Services, 

Lead Member for Finance and Support Services, Chief Executive, Strategic 
Director for People, Director of Public Health, and Chief Finance Officer.  

 
3.10. Voting arrangements are continuing to be developed, and will be finalised in 

light of legal advice on committee arrangements.  It will be for SCC to agree 

its voting members of the Board.  As with current arrangements, specific 
issues will be reserved to reflect the statutory responsibilities of organisations 

and key roles within those organisations (for example, children’s social care 
and the statutory responsibilities of the Strategic Director for People).  
Detailed Terms of Reference are now being developed.    

 
3.11. The Locality Board will need to be formally agreed by the Full Council, before 

the target implementation date of 1 July 2022. 
 
Place Lead 

 

3.12. The second element of the locality model is a Place Lead.  This is a senior 

person that will provide strategic leadership within Salford.   The role will: 
 

 Have a relationship of mutual accountability with the GM ICB 

 Convene local partnership arrangements 

 Lead ICB staff working on behalf of the locality in Salford   

 Drive integration, transformation and delivery at executive level  
Page 35



 Support shared learning and systematic processes for translating GM 
and national programmes into locality delivery 

 Lead pan-locality collaboration to deliver across boundaries 
 

3.13. It is important to have the right person – this will be a crucial role in leading 
and shaping Salford’s relationship with the GM ICS, and in ensuring 

arrangements in Salford continue to work well.   It is envisaged the role will 
be undertaken by an existing strategic leader within the Salford heath and 
care system. NHSE considers each locality will need to have a jointly-

appointed place-based lead so that there is an individual officer who is 
accountable to the ICB, as well as to his or her employer.  Further guidance 

is expected in the very near future.   
 

3.14. During the transition period and whilst CCGs still exist with their statutory 

duties, the Salford Transition Board agreed the default place lead(s) for 
Salford will be Steve Dixon, the Chief Accountable Officer for Salford CCG 

and Charlotte Ramsden, Strategic Director People for Salford Council. The 
Transition Board has at the same time overseen the development of a role 
profile, person specification and an agreed approach to identifying the longer 

term Place Lead.   
 

3.15. The Transition Board has agreed the value of a transparent process for 
agreeing a Place Lead in Salford.  This will ensure the best possible buy-in 
form all partners.  Following local consultation with all partners in the Salford 

Health and Care system, the Transition Board has endorsed Salford City 
Council’s Chief Executive as the nominated place lead.  

 
3.16. Expectations of the role will continue to be clarified through further discussion 

with the GM ICB, together with appointment to GM ICS executive roles; 

relationship of the Place Lead to any executive roles appointed in Salford, 
and particularly to management roles within a Salford based locality team.  

The Place Lead will be expected to actively engage in the role, and it may 
represent a significant time commitment.   
 

Provider Collaborative 
 

3.17. The third element of new locality arrangements is an enhanced provider 
partnership – a Provider Collaborative. The primary role of the Collaborative 
will be to convert the strategic intentions of the Locality Board into co-

designed and coordinated delivery. The Collaborative will have four core 
functions: integrated service planning; joint service delivery and 
transformation; population health management; and, connecting to and 

supporting communities. 
 

3.18. Work has focused on defining the principles, agreeing membership, and 
defining the role of a provider ‘board’, including its relationship to the Salford 
Locality Board.   

 
3.19. The Salford Provider Collaborative will have a broad membership, to ensure 

representation from across primary care, mental health, community health, 
hospital and acute health services, public health, and social care.  It is also 

Page 36



important the Collaborative has a balance between all age, adults and 
children’s services.   

 
3.20. Strategic decision making, including for integrated funding at a locality level, 

will continue to sit with the Locality Board.  The Provider Collaborative Board 
is currently being developed along a provider leadership board model, 
whereby Board members come together with common delegated 

responsibilities from their respective organisations, and consistent with their 
own organisations governance arrangements.   A Board of 16 is currently 

being proposed: comprising 3 members each from SCC, primary care, the 
NCSA/Salford Care Organisation, VCSE, GMMH and 1 from Manchester 
Foundation Trust (representing CAMHS).  The Collaborative itself will have a 

wider involvement.  
 

3.21. This work is ongoing – and will report to the Transition Board over the next 
few months.  Final proposals will be shared with Cabinet as part of the 
decision making on governance and the Locality Board arrangements.  
 
Clinical and Professional Senate 

 
3.22. The fourth element of new locality arrangements is the Clinical and 

Professional Senate – to ensure clinical and professional leadership remains 

at the forefront of health and care strategic planning and delivery across 
Salford.   

 
3.23. National guidance supports the development of distributed and inclusive 

clinical and care leadership across an ICS.  It is expected to work equally 

across the NHS, local authorities, social care, and other partners.    
 

3.24. Clinical and professional leadership is already well embedded within the 
Salford system.   It is embedded in the CCG Governing Body, through both 
Board representation and clinical workstream leads.  Since 2014, and the 

delivery of integrated care, social care professional leads have been 
integrated into the professional leadership forums across the city.  Proposed 

arrangements from July will build on the existing arrangements, extended 
beyond commissioning. 

 

3.25. Enhanced clinical and professional leadership would provide the opportunity 
for system wide focus on: sustainability plans; workforce development and 

staffing; extending medical examiner scrutiny to non-acute settings; 
continued system wide quality improvement via the Safer Salford 
programme.  It could also be expanded to provide a focused leadership on 

social value and inequalities.  It also provides the opportunity to enhance 
clinical and professional leadership support, beyond that built into the 

membership of the Locality Board.  
 

3.26. Proposals on membership and the formal relationship of the Senate to the 

Locality and Provider Boards are still being developed, and will be reported 
to the Transition Board in coming months.  Final proposals will be shared 

with Cabinet as part of the decision making on governance and the Locality 
Board arrangements. 

 

Page 37



Governance arrangements  

 
3.27. The proposed arrangements described above are illustrated below.  

Figure 4: Salford Health and Care System governance, at 7 Feb 2022 
 

 
 

 

3.28. Democratic leadership and accountability, alongside strengthened clinical 

and professional health and care leadership for the quality, safety, planning 
and delivery of services, continue to be at the heart of the proposed 
arrangements.  The Locality Board  

 
Figures 5: Proposed Salford Locality Governance, from July 2022 (tbc) 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 Page 38



Neighbourhood arrangements 

 

3.29. The Locality Model outlined is underpinned by strengthened delivery in 
Salford’s neighborhoods’.  To date, we have developed good examples of 

integrated neighbourhood working – with the development of Early Help and 
Family Hubs, the Salford Family Partnership Model, strengthened 
Community Safety Referral Teams and Local Resilience Forums, and a 

reformed universal offer based around our Gateways and Family Hubs.  At 
the same time the development of Primary Care Networks, health and care 

multi-disciplinary teams, have strengthened neighbourhood delivery of 
community services.  A strong partnership with locally based VCSE 
organisations has been crucial. 

 
3.30. The next stage is to explore the potential for greater alignment, and possibly 

integration, of these neighbourhood models – whilst ensuring a focus on 
residents, and the differing needs of children, adults, and families. 
 
How the systems work together 

 

3.31. How the GM, locality and neighbourhood systems are intended to work together is 
illustrated in the diagram below.  There remains a clear commitment to continue to 
operate at all three levels: GM, city or locality and neighbourhood, with services 

and support working seamlessly between the three.   Detailed constitution and 
governance arrangements are being finalised as set out in this note.  

 
Figure 6: GM Integrated Care Partnership arrangements 

 

 
 

4. FINANCIAL IMPACT, RISK SHARE AND PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT  
 

4.1. In line with the national changes, Salford CCG will cease to exist from 1 July 
2022, with its responsibilities and funding transferring to the GM ICS.  As 

such, the existing partnership agreement and Integrated Fund between SCC 
and Salford CCG will need to novate to the GM ICB.  At the same time 
though, the flow of NHS funding will change – with some funding allocated 

Page 39



direct from the GM ICB to providers at GM and in localities.  This will have a 
direct impact on the level of NHS funding delegated to the Salford Locality 

Board.  This spatial flow of funding will have a direct impact on the scale of 
health funding that will be included in an updated Integrated Fund for health 

and care in Salford. 
 

4.2. Detailed discussions are underway between the Strategic Director for 

People, Chief Finance Officer, and the Shared Legal Service, with 
counterparts in the Salford CCG, Northern Care Alliance, and GM Health and 

Social Care Partnership to understand the spatial flow of funding (at GM, and 
locally), to understand the budget assumptions of SCC, and of the GM 
system, and to map the impact this has on the level of funding to be 

integrated locally.  
 

4.3. This work will directly impact on the City Council budget setting discussions, 
and Cabinet are being kept updated via the Budget away days and future 
budget strategy discussions in terms of the potential size of the integrated 

fund and budget pressures.  There are though a number of key assumptions 
to reinforce: 

 

 Pre-published CCG allocations will be honoured, but subject to the 
conclusion of the spatial framework exercise, funding could potentially 

be split 60 / 40 between GM and localities, reducing the funding that 
could be pooled in a Salford Integrated Fund. 

 

 No funding reductions linked to savings have been included in current 

projections, other than the planned £4.4m reduction from SCC.  The 
impact of the £4.4m reduction on the overall fund position and 
opportunities to address associated pressures are being considered by 

the Strategic Director for People, and reviewed through the council’s 
budget setting process.  Current council budget projections assume the 

council s able to withdraw the full £4.4m from the integrated fund 
without increasing the overall budget pressures associated with the 
fund. A first draft of the potential 2022/23 integrated fund has been 

shared which indicated a significantly worsening position compared to 
the initial 2021/22 estimate of £6.1m, even within a best case scenario.  

Further work is being undertaken to identify opportunities to mitigate 
this additional pressure.  

 

 Additional social care funding announced within the provisional 
settlement will be passported into the integrated fund as will all 

proceeds from the adult social care precept. A maximum precept of 1% 
can be applied in 2022/23 along with the ‘unapplied’ precept of 1% 
relating to 2021/22.  

 

 The first draft of the 2022/23 integrated fund included a small number of 

potential investments linked to funding requirements (for example 
inflation and mental health investment standard) and priorities 
(movement towards the real living wage). As the overall fund position 

becomes clearer the affordability of the various investments can be 
assessed. 

 
Page 40



 There is a working assumption that a baseline risk of £6.1m will be 
accepted by partners to the integrated fund in 2022/23 which is 

consistent with the agreement reached by partners in setting the  
2021/22 integrated fund budget. Furthermore it is assumed that the 

balance of funding to meet this risk will be maintained at current levels.  
 

4.4. A key issue will be the risk share to be adopted in any revised agreement.  

Currently, risk share is proportional to the level of investment made to the 
Fund.  This works out as: primary care (£110m) – 100% to the CCG; adults 

(£423m) – 80% to the CCG, and 20% to SCC; Children’s (£128m) – 33% to 
the CCG and 67% to SCC.   As the level of funding changes, so too do the 
benefits and relative contributions to a risk share agreement.  A number of 

issues are currently being worked through: 
 

 Who will be party to a risk share?  For the GM ICB, this could mean 
they are party to 10 separate locality risk shares. It’s not yet clear what 

the GM approach is likely to be.  
 

 SCC has benefited significantly from the existing risk share 

arrangements.  As the level of funding changes, we will need to 
consider the ongoing benefit of a risk share eg if the NHS contribution 

to Children’s  is less than 10% will the same benefits accrue? 
 

 There are other risk share agreements in place, some more informal.  

Will these continue, or potentially be included in a wider agreement? 
 

4.5. There are a range of options currently being evaluated – with no clear 
recommendation as yet.  Much depends on discussions with the shadow GM 
arrangements now in place.  Scenarios include a continuation of existing risk 

share arrangements based upon contributions, one overall risk share across 
the locality fund or a partial risk share for adult social care. It is likely that 

each of these options represents a worsening position in terms of the 
balance of risk sitting with the council. 
 

4.6. Potentially, a new partnership agreement will be needed to support the 
revised integrated fund.  It is not yet clear if GM will prefer a standardised or 

model partnership agreement with each of the 10 districts.  Discussions are 
underway with the shared legal service and GM leads to understand the 
likely preferred terms of novation, and to develop the detailed scope and 

terms of any revised Partnership Agreement. 
 

4.7. Within SCC regular updates are being reported to the Deputy City Mayor and 
Lead Member for Finance and Support Services, and is also being reported 
to the monthly Transition Board.  The decision to formally adopt the revised 

partnership agreement is for the City Mayor.  Given the wider impact on the 
city council’s budget strategy, it is a decision that will be taken in consultation 

with Cabinet.   
 

5. DECISION MAKING 

 

5.1. The reforms set out above will impact on the City Council’s decision making 

and our existing Integrated Fund and Section 75 Partnership Agreement with 
Page 41



NHS Salford CCG as set out in the report. Salford City Council operates a 
pooled budget arrangement with Salford CCG, supported by the s.75 

Partnership Agreement.  The agreement is due to novate to the ICB once the 
CCG ceases to exist from 1 July 2022.  

 
5.2. Two Key Decisions will be required: 

 

 Adoption of the Salford Locality Board – replacing the existing Health and 
Care Board, and integrated commissioning decision making arrangements.  

This is a key decision that will require the agreement of Full Council.  
 

 A revised Section 75 Partnership Agreement (including a revised risk share 

arrangement) between Salford City Council and the GM Integrated Care 
Board – this will replace the existing Partnership Agreement between the city 

council and NHS Salford CCG.  This is a key decision, to be taken by the City 
Mayor, in discussion with Cabinet.  

 
5.3 Officer’s will schedule these decisions, with timing now influenced by the 

delayed target date to 1 July for national implementation.   

 
 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:   
 

Great Eight, Salford Locality Plan 
 

 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  

 
Equality considerations will be reflected in the detailed design of new governance 
arrangements, including for the provider collaborative and clinical and professional 

senate, and in the functions and focus for the Locality Team.   
 

 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  High 

 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:   Joanne Hardman, Chief Finance Officer, 

0161 793 3156 

 
Financial implications are covered in section 4 of the report.  

 
 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 
 
HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  Samantha Betts, Assistant Director Human 

Resources and Organisational Development, 0161 607 8602   
 

There are no Salford City Council directly employed staffing implications as a result 
of the changes outlined in this report with wider workforce considerations contained 

Page 42



within the main body of the report

 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  Tony Hatton, Group Leader Commercial, Legal 

Services, 0161 219 6323 
 

The ICB (Integrated Care Board) will be the new statutory NHS entity in each ICS.  

The ICP (Integrated Care Partnership) will be the partnership between the ICB and 
each of the local authorities in the area covered by the ICS (GM). The GM model is 

different to most, in that it also features the JPDC, which will support the work of the 
ICB. 
 

The intention in GM was that the ICP chair would be drawn from the Leaders of the 
10 LAs within it and would be the GMCA portfolio lead.  The ICP Chair was intended 

to be a member of the ICB, but it appears that as currently drafted, the NHS model 
ICB constitution prevents LA members from becoming ICB members, which 
precludes the ICP Chair from becoming a voting member of the ICB.  It is expected 

that Regulations (yet to be introduced) will confirm the position in the NHS model 
constitution in due course, and if that is the case, a pragmatic solution is for the ICP 

Chair to attend and participate in ICB meetings without being a voting member of the 
ICB.   
 

Salford’s locality arrangements are developing in parallel with the design and 
implementation of the ICS at GM level. Each locality is responsible for its own 

governance arrangements, although these are subject to check and challenge by 
GMHSCP prior to ICB implementation. The governance arrangements need to work 
at GM, locality and neighbourhood level to achieve the aims of the ICS and meet the 

challenges faced by, and requirements of, the Salford system. 
 

The Shared Legal Service has advised on emerging locality governance and 
structures in Salford in light of the Health and Care Bill and the changes it will mean 
at national and GM level.  Other officers in the Shared Legal Service are working with 

GMHSCP on the development of the ICS and the teams are working closely together, 
while keeping the risk of conflict of interest under review. 

 
The target implementation date for the ICS has been put back to allow passage of 
the Health and Care Bill through Parliament, but the additional time allows 

arrangements in Salford to be fully planned and tested against emerging GM 
arrangements. 

 
Given that locality and GM arrangements are still emerging, further work will be 
required to ensure that governance structures are aligned and that financial flows 

operate properly.  Although the ICS will be established by 1 July 2022, the remainder 
of 2022/23 may be a transition year, allowing new arrangements to bed in. 

 
The Shared Legal Service has also advised on the proposed decision making 
processes and timings referred to at section 5 regarding the key decision required to 

properly implement and progress the ICS for the Salford system. 

 
 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:   People, Service Reform  

 
Page 43



 
CONTACT OFFICER:   

 
Charlotte Ramsden  Strategic Director for People TEL NO: 0161 778 0130 

Jacquie Russell  Assistant Director Strategy  TEL NO: 0161 793 3577 
Joanne Hardman  Chief Finance Offcier  TEL NO: 0161 793 3156 

 
 
Wards to which this relates:  All 

Page 44



1 | P a g e  

Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel 
Work Programme / Terms of Reference / Membership 

2021/2022 
Updated 21.02.22 

Meeting date Item for consideration  Lead Officer to present papers 

7 July 2021   

 

- Work Programme Planning for 2021 / 2022 

 
- Update on NHS Reforms 

 

Charlotte Ramsden / Muna Abdel Aziz / Steve Dixon 

 
Steve Dixon 

August No Meeting 
 

1 September 2021 - Update on NHS Reforms 
 

- Covid-19 Update 

Steve Dixon 
 

Muna Abdel Aziz / Gillian Mclauchlan 
 

6 October 2021 - Update on NHS Reforms 

 
- Covid-19 Update 

Steve Dixon 

 
Muna Abdel Aziz / Gillian Mclauchlan 

 

3 November 2021 - GP Access: The Impact of COVID-19  
 
- Covid-19 Update 

 
- Public Health Reforms  

 

Dr Tom Regan / Harry Golby 
 
Gillian Mclauchlan 

 
Gillian Mclauchlan 

1 December 2021 - Update on NHS Reforms 
 
- Covid-19 Update 

 
- Public Health Annual Report  

Steve Dixon 
 
Muna Abdel Aziz / Gillian Mclauchlan 

 
Gillian Mclauchlan 

January 2022 No Meeting 

 

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 9



2 | P a g e  

Meeting date Item for consideration  Lead Officer to present papers 

2 February 2022 - Covid-19 Update 

 
- Update on previous deep dives undertaken by the panel 

 
- Update on deep dive into access to health services for      
BAME communities and refugees 

 

Muna Abdel Aziz / Gillian Mclauchlan  

 
Tbc 

 
Cllr Syed, Task Group chair 
 

2 March 2022 - Update on deep dive into access to health services for 
BAME communities and refugees 

 
- Integrated Care Systems - Update on Greater 
Manchester and Salford Preparations 

 
- Covid-19 Update 

Councillor Syed 
 

 
Charlotte Ramsden / Jacquie Russell 
 

 
Muna Abdel Aziz / Gillian Mclauchlan 

 

6 April 2022 - Update on NHS Reforms 
 
- Covid-19 Update  

Councillor John Merry / Jacquie Russell 
 
Muna Abdel Aziz / Gillian Mclauchlan 

 

May 2022 No Meeting 
 

 
 

ABEYANCE LIST 

 

Healthwatch Salford Annual Report Alex Leach 

Quality Accounts (SRFT, GMMHT, NWAS) TBC 

Update on hospital flow/discharges and care packages TBC 

Tobacco and update on ongoing efforts to tackle smoking prevalence Muna Abdel Aziz / Gillian Mclauchlan 

Tackling Obesity Muna Abdel Aziz / Gillian Mclauchlan 

 
REVIEWS 

 

P
age 46



3 | P a g e  

Access to health services for BAME communities and refugees  

 

 
 

 

Portfolio of the Panel: 

 

 
Membership – 12 Members: 

 

1. Health, Public Health and Social Care Integration and 
performance thereafter 

2.  Commissioning Hub 
3.  Major Health reconfiguration 

4. Overview of Health and Wellbeing Board in promoting 
integration 
5.  Supporting People 

6. Services for independent living – care on call, sheltered 
housing, supported tenancies 

7. Adult Safeguarding 
8. Integrated Teams 
9. Provider Services 

10. Personalisation and care management 
11. Asylum Seekers and Refugees 

12. Welfare rights and debt advice 
13. To review and scrutinise any matter relating to the planning 
provision and operation of the health service in the Salford area. 

14. To scrutinise the council’s business plan and budget in this 
functional area 

Councillors 

 

 Bellamy (VC) 

 Boshell 

 Burch (C) 

 Dawson 

 K Garrido 

 King 

 Morris 

 Rowland 

 Saunders 

 Syed 

 Taylor 

 Warmisham 

 
J Ahmed - Co-opted Member (Healthwatch Salford) 
Bruce Poole - Co-opted Member (Salford CVS) 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

P
age 47



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	 GUIDANCE ON THE RETURN TO FACE COUNCIL MEETINGS
	7 Deep Dive Health Needs Black and Minority Ethnic (BAME) Groups including Refugees and People Seeking Asylum (Councillor Syed)
	8 Integrated Care Systems - Update on Greater Manchester and Salford Preparations
	9 Work Programme.

